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CHESAPEAKE BAY TMDL PROJECT 
(4 PONDS) 

IFB No. 15304-FY17-15 
Addendum #1 

October 25, 2016 

1. The bid date has been extended to 3:30 p.m. Thursday November 10, 2016. Bids will be
opened and read aloud at 25 West Market Street, Lower Level Conference Room 3.

2. All bidders are required to use the Unit Rate Table dated October 24, 2016 in order for
their bid to be considered responsive (Attachment ‘A’). The Unit Rate Table will also
be available on the Town’s Bid Board (www.leesburgva.goc/bidboard) in MS WORD
format; however, any changes to the Unit Rate Table’s description, unit or quantity
shall render the bid non-responsive.

3. Correction to Instruction to Bidders:  Under the “Required Contractor Qualifications”
section on Page 25, the first paragraph should read:
“This project requires specialized knowledge and expertise. The contractor must submit
written information demonstrating experience by having completed a minimum of five (5)
similar projects within the last five (5) years and commit to the availability of key, skilled
personnel necessary to complete the entire scope of work required for the project. Submittals
that do not comply with this criterion will not be considered.”

4. The Town reserves the right to eliminate any of the four ponds and decrease contractor total
bid lump sum amount by the eliminated pond lump sum amount, at no additional cost to the
Town.

5. Questions and Answers:

Question 1:  Can you provide me with the approximately “start date”?    
Answer 1:  Notice To Proceed (NTP) is anticipated by the beginning of 2017.  After 
the construction contract is fully executed, the Town will provide an administrative 
NTP to facilitate ordering plant material and other related items. 

Question 2:  Is there a pre-bid for the project? 
Answer 2:  No. 

Question 3:  Page 33 of 136 has a specific maintenance plan for the Kohl’s Pond. There 
is no maintenance plan in the documents for the other ponds. Is there a maintenance 
requirements for the other ponds, if so, please provide? 
Answer 3:  Delete the “Kohl’s Pond: 1 year contract maintenance” requirements 
(page 33 of 136) from the Instructions to Bidders.  In its place, add the following 
requirements which apply to all ponds.  
“In addition to the warranty requirements contained in the contract, the Contractor 
will accompany the Town in performing an inspection of all four ponds in the 
spring and fall of the warranty period.  These two inspections will check for 90% 

http://www.leesburgva.goc/bidboard
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vegetative cover.  The Contractor will replant any areas where 90% cover has not 
been achieved.”  
 
Question 4:  Please Confirm that all clearing & grubbing is to be done by others and is 
not in the base bid? 
Answer 4: All clearing and grubbing is part of this Contract.  Kohl’s Pond Sheet 6 
and Greenway Farm Pond Sheet 4 have been revised (see Attachment ‘B’) to delete 
the “Clearing by Others” note. Wood chips from the cleared trees may be spread on 
the field on the east side of the stream in the Greenway Farm Pond area to a depth 
of no more than four inches.    

 
Question 5:  Item #12 on the bid form for unit pricing has, “Dewatering system with 
pumps as needed” & has a quantity of 300 LF. How many days, weeks, or months are we 
dewatering 300 LF? Is this item a continuous dewatering (Stream Diversion) or pumping 
down of a pond? 
Answer 5:  All dewatering and pump around required for the construction is to be 
included in the Lump Sum item for each pond. 
  
In the event that a change in the scope of work requires additional pump around, 
Item #12 will be utilized for payment.  Further, the Unit has been revised to “Per 
Day” (see Attachment ‘A’ Revised Unit Rate Table). Bidders must use this Revised 
Unit Rate Table.  
 
Question 6:  Stipulated unit prices on page 7 of 136. Does your Rock Excavation unit 
price include the hauling of this material offsite and the dump fee? 
Answer 6:  Yes, the stipulated unit price for Rock Excavation must include hauling 
and disposing of the material. 
 
Question 7:  Is there a soils report and borings associated with this project, if so, please 
provide it. 
Answer 7: The geotechnical reports from the original construction of the Foxridge 
Pond and Greenway Farm Pond are attached (see Attachment ‘C’).  Additional test 
pit information for the Greenway Farm pond will be provided in a separate 
addendum. 
 
Question 8:  How will unsuitable soils or undercut be handled, if required? 
Answer 8: The cost of removing unsuitable soils and undercut is included in the 
Lump Sum unit price for each pond.  The Contractor must perform due diligence in 
estimating the cost for unsuitable soils encountered.   
 
Question 9:  Stratford Pond: There is no detail for the micropool, are we to use the detail 
on sheet 17 of 22 “Typical Cross Section At Pool” for the micropool? If so, what is the 
thickness for compacted backfill material? This only shows installation 8” lifts.  
Answer 9: The proposed micropool plan view and four cross sections are shown and 
labeled on Sheet 12.  Sheet 17 refers to the step pool system for the incoming channel 
into the pond.  For the step pool system, the thickness for the compacted backfill 
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material would vary and may not be required if there is a cut situation and a stable 
subgrade is met.  In that case, the underdrain would be above the stable subgrade 
and no fill would be required.  If fill is required, the compaction may be performed 
with the back of an excavator bucket and approved by the on-site engineer. 
 
Question 10:  Stratford Pond- Sheet 19 of 22 shows a detail for the Cascade Channel, 
please provide an elevation for the top of the riprap or a proposed thickness. 
Answer 10: The invert of the channel (top of the cascade channel 318.40’ which is 
the top of the riprap stone) is shown on Sheet 12 as “proposed storm channel 2 
profile view”.  The thickness of the riprap for the cascade channel shall be 
approximately 2 x D50 = 2.2’ (D50 for CL I = 1.1 ft.).  Contractor shall place (NOT 
DUMP) V.D.O.T. Class I riprap to form the typical trapezoidal section with an 
undulating bed. 

 
Question 11:  Will the Town’s Staff be performing the inspection services for this 
project or will it be performed by an outside consultant. 
Answer 11: It is anticipated that Town staff will perform inspection services for the 
civil work and an outside consultant will inspect wetlands construction including 
planting.  However the contractor is responsible for Q/C testing per Contract 
General Condition section 4.14.11. This Contractor provided Q/C testing shall be 
considered incidental to all other items of work. 

 
Question 12:  It appears that the drawings have not changed for the Greenway, Foxridge, 
and Kohl's Ponds.  Addendums 1-3 in the first bid addressed several questions we asked 
pertaining to these projects. Will you issue an addendum that clarifies that the previously 
answered questions are a part of these contract documents? 
Answer 12: Applicable questions from the addenda issued when this project was 
originally bid are included below (Questions & Answers 13 - 36).  

 
Question 13: Foxridge Pond - Planting sheet 11 calls for Juncus ustitatus to be utilized in 
planting zone 1. Although a wetland species, it is native to Australia and thus unavailable. 
Could a native species be substituted? 
Answer 13: Yes, Juncus Canadensis (Canada Rush) and Juncus Effusus (Soft Rush) 
are both acceptable alternatives. 

 
Question 14: Greenway Pond - Planting sheet 11 calls for trees in plug form spaced at 
18” OC. However, mortality rate will be high spaced this close together. Please advise. 
Answer 14: Follow planting configuration as shown. 
 
Question 15: Kohl’s Pond - A planting plan has not been included. Please confirm no 
plantings will be required. 
Answer 15: No planting is required for Kohl’s Pond. 
 
Question 16: For all three locations, the construction note on sheet 2 states “All areas… 
which are disturbed… shall be adequately stabilized… shall consist of permanent grass, 
seed mixture to be as recommended by the town.” Will a seed mix such as ERNMX-113 
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be acceptable? 
Answer 16: Yes. 
 
Question 17: Cascade Outflow Channel detail shown on plan sheet 16 of the Greenway 
Pond Project shows splash rocks on top of the reinforced bedding mix. What percentage 
of splash rock coverage is required for quantifying the amount of splash rocks to be 
installed? 
Answer 17: Splash rocks would cover between 50-60% of the width based on size 
dimensions for splash boulders given in the structure dimensions table on Sheet 16. 
  
Question 18: The Diversion Channel Cross Section Detail has a note “Channel Bed Mix 
and splash rocks”, are there additional splash rocks required other than the splash rocks 
that are included in the Channel Bed Mix, and if so how do we quantify. 
Answer 18: No. 
 
Question 19: What is the ratio of materials required for 20 tons of channel bed mix? 
Answer 19: See channel bed material specs on Sheet 16 of the Greenway Farms 
Pond drawings. 
 
Question 20: Typically stream bed sub-grade is not tested for compaction, are we 
required to test stream bed sub-grade on this project? 
Answer 20: Yes. 
 
Question 21: Is there a detail for the Foxridge Pond Micropool? Does this have to be 
lined with 18” depth river cobblestone mix? 
Answer 21: There is no detail for Foxridge Pond Micropool. Yes, line the micropool 
with 18” depth river cobblestone mix. 
 
Question 22: River Cobblestone typically comes in 2”-4”, 4”-6”,6”-16” and 16”+, what 
size are we pricing? If there is a specific mix on sizes, what is the ratio for 20 tons of 
river cobblestone? 
Answer 22: Cobblestone gradation mix is shown in the Hydraulic Computations 
Results on Sheet 16 of the Foxridge Pond plans. 
 
Question 23: Can you release the cad files to bidders before the bid date, for earthwork 
take-off purposes? 
Answer 23: No. 
 
Question 24: Greenway Pond Retrofit Plan shows “Curb Protection” sheet 8, does this 
same detail apply for Kohl’s & Greenway Access? Kohl’s & Greenway plans do not show 
this detail. 
Answer 24: Foxridge and Kohl’s do not require curb protection. 
 
Question 25: Are we to include existing paved access road repair in the base bid? If so, 
can we use an allowance so everybody prices the same thing? 
Answer 25: Contractors shall assume 10,000 SF of Access Road Repair. 
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Question 26: Are we to assume that existing topsoil quantities are sufficient for future re-
spread requirements without the need to import topsoil? 
Answer 26: This is a Lump Sum Contract; the Contractor will estimate the required 
top soil quantity and determine if additional topsoil is required. 
  
Question 27: Is graffiti protection required on the inside of the existing SWM riser for 
the Greenway pond? 
Answer 27: Yes. Specifications for the graffiti protection are provided on Sheet 19. 
 
Question 28: Page 73 section(s) 4.9 and 4.9.1 of the specifications states: “Contractor 
shall secure and pay for all permits, fees, licenses and inspections necessary for the proper 
execution and completion of the work that are legally required at the time the proposals 
are received. “ - What permits does the owner already have and what permits will be the 
responsibility of the contractor? Is the contractor expected to provide and pay for 
construction inspections? 
Answer 28: The contractor is not responsible for any permits; the Town will apply 
for the County Grading permit and SWPPP authorization. The Contractor is 
responsible for testing and quality control per contract document while the Town 
will provide for construction inspection. 
 
Question 29: Will the contractor be required to install access roads? Foxridge and 
Greenway call for a limited amount of wetland mats, is that all that is required for those 
projects? 
Answer 29: Yes, see E&S Control Phase II for both projects. 
 
Question 30: Is the extent of the stream riffle for Foxridge the zone 1 planting? Or how 
wide is the stream riffle for Foxridge? 
Answer 30: The riffle technically includes the zone 1 planting area and is 12 ft. per 
sheet 18. However, the 2 ft. thick river cobblestone mix is only 8 ft. wide as per 
shown on the detail on Sheet 18. 
 
Question 31: The Pool section detail on sheet 18 of 27 of the Foxridge plans shows rock 
toe but nowhere else on the plans indicates any rock toe? Is there rock toe on this project? 
And if so, where along the stream will the contractor be expected to install it? 
Answer 31: Yes, there is a rock toe. It is required to be installed in the pool sections 
as shown in the detail on Sheet 18. 
  
Question 32: Can you please provide a gradation table or a mix percentage table for the 
reinforced bed material for Foxridge Pond? Sheet 17 of 27 indicates that the entire 
channel should be filled with splash boulders to a depth of 2 feet and the void spaces 
filled with a mix a river cobblestones. Can you please elaborate on exactly how much of 
each material you would like installed? Such as 30% Splash Boulder and 70% 2”-8” 
River Cobble or whatever gradation the engineer intends. 
Answer 32: On Sheet 16, under Hydraulics Computations Results, the gradation 
mix is shown for the main alignment (longest channel between plunge pool and 
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micropool) which runs through the pond bottom. The information on Sheet 17 is for 
the tributary channel which contains cross vanes feeding into the micropool. See 
channel bed material specs on Sheet 17 for the tributary bed material. 

Question 33: Under the instructions to bidders there is an experience requirement for 5 
similar projects over the past 5 years.  Can a GC with less than that pre-requisite use a 
sub-contractor's experience to meet the requirements? 
Answer 33: No.  The prime contractor must have the experience required in the 
instructions to bidders. 

Question 34: Are the three ponds to be performed simultaneously, or can the work be 
done consecutively? 
Answer 34: The Contractor has 180 calendar days to substantially complete all four 
ponds. Per the General Conditions, section 4.11 “Project Schedule”, the contractor 
is required to present its plan, sequence of construction, etc. for Town approval. 

Question 35: Is there a grant for this project with a defined limit of funding for the 
project budget, or are additional funds available? 
Answer 35: The Town has received a Stormwater Local Assistance Fund (SLAF) 
grant from the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) to finance 50% of the 
estimated cost of constructing each of the three ponds.  The Town of Leesburg has 
set aside funds of the same amount of each grant for the four ponds. No additional 
funds are currently available for this construction.  

Question 36: What is the proposed schedule for this project? 
Answer 36: See Contract Time (page 30) and Project Schedules (page 74) of contract 
document. 

END OF ADDENDUM #1
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UNIT RATE TABLE 
Revised by Addendum No. 1 

The contractor shall use the form below to provide unit rates to be used in any change in scope (± addition or omission) 

Ref. DESCRIPTION Unit  Qty. Unit Price 

1 ± Allaying dust using water truck DY        3 

2 ± Curb protection, Complete in Place Incl. Maintenance & Removal (see plans for details) EA        3 

3 ± Silt Fence Complete in Place Incl. Maintenance & Removal LF    300 

4 ± Safety Fence Complete in Place Incl. Maintenance & Removal LF    300 

5 ± Tree Protection Complete in Place Incl. Maintenance & Removal LF    300 

6 ± Check Dam Complete in Place Incl. Maintenance & Removal EA        3 

7 ± Outlet Protection Complete in Place Incl. Maintenance & Removal EA        3 

8 ± Culvert Inlet Protection, Complete in Place Incl. Maintenance & Removal EA        3 

9 ± Removal and rearranging of rip-rap (see plans for details) SY    300 

10 ± Rip-rap bank protection, complete in place (see plans for details) SY    300 

11 ± 36" RCP Pipe, Complete in place including Excavation, Bedding & Backfill LF      30 

12 ± Pump around - Dewatering system with pumps as needed (see plans for details) DY   7 

13 ± Grading of access road SY    300 

14 ± Repair Asphalt Access road including VDOT 21-A stone base SF    300 

15 ± 5' Asphalt trail (2" SM-9.5 and 4" VDOT 21-A stone base) LF    300 

16 ± Regular excavation Including wetland areas CY    300 

Attachment A
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Unit Rates (continued) 

Ref. DESCRIPTION Unit  Qty. Unit Price 

17 ± Dredging of pond areas (1 foot) SY   300 

18 ± Rock Cross Vane Incl. Splash rocks and Reinforced Bed Mix complete in place with diversion 
channel (see plans for details) EA       3 

19 ± Soil Amendments: add sand, compost, topsoil or wetland mulch CY   300 

20 ± Remove and reset existing white vinyl split rail fence LF   300 

21 ± Wood chip matt, Complete in Place Incl. Maintenance & Removal SY   300 

22 ± Permanent Seeding & Mulching Incl. Lime and Fertilizer SY   300 

23 ± Purple martin box with raccoon predator guard, complete in place EA 5 

24 ± Bat House, complete in place EA 15 



Attachment B - Greenway Pond
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Attachment B - Kohl's Pond
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Attachment C - Foxridge 
Geotech Report







































































































Attachment C - Greenway 
Geotech Report









































































Attachment C - Greenway Geotech Boring 
Plan




